
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

DISTRICT OF SOUTH CAROLINA

CHARLESTON DIVISION

FILED
JAil 1 6

LARRY W. PF~-.,O,,’:~::’, ’ CLERK

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY
COMMISSION,

Plaintiff,

vs.

HOOVER DODGE, INC.,
HOOVER CHRYSLER, INC.,
HOOVER JEEP CHRYSLER, INC.,
and HOOVER CHRYSLER JEEP, INC.,

Defendants.

JESSICA KEEFER and
LAURA FRANKS,

Intervenors.

NATURE OF ACTION

CIVIL ACTION Z;03~-30155~-ISBG

COMPLAINT~ TN>-. INTERVENTION
(Sexual Harassment)’
(Jury Requested)

±. Intervenor/Plaintiffs Jessica Keefer and Laura Franks

(hereinafter, "Keefer" and "Franks"), bring this action ~o obtain

redress for sex discrimination due to sexual harassment in the

workplace, and constructive discharge from their employmgnt with

Defendant Hoover Dodge, Inc., d/b/a, "Hoover Dodge"; in Violation

of Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (.hereinafter, "Title

VII"), 42 U.S.C. 2000e; the Civil Rights Act of 1991, 42! U.S.C.

1981a; for breach of contract, and breach of contract accomganied

by fraudulent act.



2. Intervenors hereby adopt and incorporate by refer

paragraphs 1-14 of the Plaintiff"s Amended Complaint file

December 30, 2003.

JURISDICTION

ance

~ on

3. This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to 42 U.S.C. 2000e~5

i 1337,(.f) (11 and (3); 42 U.S.C. 1981a; and 28 U.S.C. 451~ 1331,,

1343, and 1345. Because the State law claims arise out Of the

same facts and events that gave rise to the claims under iTitle

VII, the State claims form a part of the same case or controversy

as the Title VII claim and the Court has supplemental jurisdiction

over the State claims pursuant to 28 U..S..C~ 1367. The employment

practices alleged to 5e unlawful were committed w~.thi.n t~e jurist.

diction of the Un±ted States District Court for the. District of

South Caroli~a~ Charleston Divi.sion~.

P~RT!ES

4. Intervenor Je.ssica Keefer~ at all times, relevantito this

Complaint~ was and 2.s a female citizen and reg2den~ of DOrcBester

County, Soutg. Carol2na~ and was employed B.y Hoover Dodge as a re~

ceptionist D~etwee.n NovemDer 20.00 and June 2d01..            :

5. Intervenor Laura Franks:, at all times relevant tO this.

Complaint~ was a female citizen and resident of Dorc~ester County~



South Carolina; and was also employed by Hoover Dodge as a sales

person between March and June, 2001.

6a. Defendant Hoover Dodge, at all relevant times, has, contin~

uously been a South Carolina corporation doing business l!n Summerville,

South Carolina, and has continuously had at least 15 emplioyees.

6B. Defendant Hoover Chrysler, Inc., at all relevant itimes, has

continuously Been a South. Carolina corporation doing bus~ness in Sums.

merville, South Carolina, and elsewhere in the Charleston~ South Caro~

lina metropolitan area, and has continuously had at least 15 employees.

6c. Defendant Hoover Jeep Chrysler, Inc., at all relevant times~

has continuously Been a South Carolina corporation doing ibus~ness in

Summerville, South. Carolina, and elsewhere in the Charleston~ South

Carolina metropolitan area, and has continuously had at ~east 15

loyees.

6d. Defendant Hoover Chrysler Jeep, Inc,, at all relevant times,

has continuously Been a South Carolina corporation doing business in

Summerville, South Caro±ina~ and elsewhere in the Ch.arle~ton,. South.

Carolina metropolitan area, and has continuously Bad at least 15 em~,-

ployees.

7. At all relevant times f. Defendant Hoover Dodge~ and the other

defendants named 2n paragraphs 6B--6d above, were an ~_ntegrated enters.

prJ~se of automobile, dealerships doing business as ..~oover the Nover’,’

on Old Trolley Road in Summerv±.lle, .South Caroli.na~ and elsewhere in

the Charleston, South Carolina metropolitan area~.

8. At all relevant times, Defendants have continuously been em-

ployers engaged in an industry affecting commerce within

of 42 U.S.C. 2000e(b), (g), and (h).

the meaning



FACTS

9. From 2000 to 2001, Intervenors were subjected tolnumerous

blatant and outrageous incidents of sexual harassment by several

adult or senior car salesmen of Hoover Dodge.. This crea~ed a sev~-

ere and pervasive hostile work environment based onIntervenors’~

sex, female.

10. Said incidents of sexual harassment were uninv~.t~d and

welcome~ and 2nvolve.d outright propositions for sex, sexual advances,

propos2t2ons for money-, requests for dates, touch±rig of private body

parts and other s-exually s.uggest±ve contacg, and lewd gestures and

c~mme.nts of a sexual nature,

11. Said incidents of sexual harassment occurred during ~he course

and scope, of the car salesmen~s employment at Hoover Dodge.

12. Zntervenors and w~tnesse.s complained numerous e~me.s, to manage~-

merit about the misconduct~ bug Hoover Dodg~ failed to effectively

ventilate the matter, stop the misconduct, or d±acipl~ne!offenders.

Hoover Dodge a~so had constructive ]~nowledge of the sexual harassment

because of its pervasiveness and frequency of occurrencei

13. Due to the intolerable and hostile work environment created

by Hoover Dodge, through its agents and servants, Keeferland Franks

were forced to resign their positions in about June 2001.

14. More than 30 days prior to inst±tution of this lawsuzt~ Keefer

filed a charge with the EEOC alleging violations of Titl~ VII by the

Defendant H~over Dodge. All conditions precedent to institution of

this lawsuit have been fulfilled.



FOR A FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
(SEXUAL DISCRIMINATION)

lb. The foregoing allegations 1-14 are incorporated b~ reference

berein as if fully re-stated verbatim.

16. The actions of Defendant Hoover Dodge, by¯¯¯and through its

agents and servants, in engaging in unwanted sexual prop~s±tlons,

sexually charged comments and gestures, and offensive physical con-

tact, all toward Keefer and Franks, constituted illegal sex discrim-

ination in violation of Title VII and the Civil Rights Act of 1991.

17. Tn.e actions of Defendant Hoover Dodge Dy and through its

agents and servants, in failing to remedy the aforesaid sexual har-.

assment and provide a workplace free from hostile conduc~ of a sexua±

nature, were ~el~berater not in good faithr and carried Out in a

manner which was ~alicious~ outrageous~ gross~ wanton an~ willful,

and in reck.less di.s:regard for the protected r±gS.ts of Ke~fer and FranRs.

18. Said sexual discri-mination was so severe an~ pervasive as to

alter tge conditionsof K~efer’.’s and Franks’. employme~nt~i~.nterfere

wit~. t~.eir wor~ performance, significantly affect their psych~logica±

well Deing~ and create¯ a n~s.ti.le.f ~usive, and offens:iNe, work, environs,

ment.                                                                      l

The effect Of t~e practices co~plaine.d of in     ~ ¯ paragraphs 10~

i ,.and 16 herein ~.as de.pr$:ved Keefer and Franks~ and other szmilarly

situated female employees who worked at th~ Summerville~ South. Carol~na

automoDile dealership on Old Trolley Road of equal employment oppor~¯



tunities and otherwise adversely affected their status as employees

because of their sex, female.

20. As a direct and proximate result of the actions Of Hoover

Dodge, through its agents and servants, Keefer and Frank~ are en-.

t±t±ed to ackuai damages for physical and personal 2.njurg~ fear~

anxiety, depression, severe emoti.onal d±stress, mental a~gu±.s~.~

gura2±iation, r±.d2cule~ ±oss of enjoyment o~ 1;re, em~arr~ssme.nt~

±ost wages and ~enef±ts., anger~ ~ost d±gn2ty-~ ~edz.ca± e~pe.nse.s,

znte.re~t~lost earning capacity~ ~,ac~ pay with pre~judgment ;" ’    h±r2ng

or front pay, and to puniti.ve damages; all in amounts to

by th.e Court~ and to reasonaDle attorney fees and cos~ts~.,

FOR A SECOND CAUSE OF ACTI0N
~-(~0N~.TRUCT~VE--D-IStHAR~ ....

~e determined

21. The foregoing allegations I~20, are, incorporated ~,y reference

herein as i,f fully, re~stated ver~atim~.

22. The acti,ons and inacti~ons,, of Hoover Dodge, by and through, its

agents and ser,vants, in fai!i,ng toprovide Keefer and Franks ~ith_ a

workplace free of sexual harassment,, consti,tuted illegalisex di.scrim~,

ination in v~.olat£on of T£,tle qII~ and the Ci~v~l Ri.g~s ACt of i~i.

23. Sai.d actions and Snactions of H,oover Dodge.~ ~y, ahd through.

¯ i
its agents, and servants~ were deliDerately directed ~@ai.nst Keefer

and Franks, in that Hoover Dodge. failed to correct tNe sexual harass,

sme,nt after it kne~~ or ShO, ul~ h.ave.kno~n~ through_ $.ts. agents and

servants, of its existence; and the ~ork. condi.ti,ons thns. :eate, d were



so intolerable that a reasonable person would not be expected, to

endure them.

24    As a proximate result of Hoover Dodge"s actions ~nd inac~-

tions, by and through, its agents and servants, Hoover Do~ge’:s work.~.

place became intoleraDIy hostile toward Keefer and Franks!, resulting

in their forced resignation and constructive discharge from employment,

entitling them to actual damages for loss of salary, ~e.nefits, anxiety,

depression, emotional distress, ~.umiliation, and emBarrass~ent; and

to punitfve damages; in amounts to be determined by th.e. Court; and to

reasonable attorney fees and costs.

FOR A ’±’HZRD CAUSE OF ACTION
(BREACH OF CONTRACT]

25. The foregoing allegations I-.24 are incorporated by reference

herein as if fully re-stated verbatim.

16. At all times relevant to this action, Hoover Dodge maintained

a written company policy strictly forbidding verbal and physical sex-.

ual harassment in the workp±ace. This policy further stated that any

such sexual ~.arassment would not De tolerated by Hoover ~odge.

27. The above ~escribed policy altered Keeferts and Frank.s~ at

will status as employees and constituted an employment contract w~.ich

Hoover Dodge was bound to ~onor with its employees, tCop~ attached hereto).

28. Hoover Dodge intended that its employees, including Keefer

and Franks, rely on this policy in continuing their employment, and

-/



~eefer and Franks ~id, in tact, so rely.

z9. Hoover Dodge violated and breached this policy in its

actions and inactions toward Keefer and Franks in allowinlg the

sexual harassment to occur, and in falling to remedy it ~nce

put upon notice of its existence.                                I

30. As a proximate result of said breach of contract,I Keefer

and Franks are informed and Delieve that they are entitl~d to ac~,

tual damages in amounts to De determined Dy the Court.

¯ FOR ~ FOU~TH CAUSE OF ACTI~N
(..BREACH OF CONT~AC’~ ACCOMPANIED BYFRAUDULENT

31. The foregoing allegations ±~30 are. incorporated By reference

herein as if fu±ly re--stated verbatim.

32    Accompanying the Breach of the aforementioned contract, the

Defendant Hoover Dodge~ through, its agents and servants~ icommi.tted

~eee±tful and fraudu±ent acts. by~ (~a[ having a sexual h~rassment

po±±cy for appearance purposes only, and u±tn. no antentz.~n or efforta

expended to enforce 2.t~ (~.l represent±n~ ~o Keefer an6 ~ranka~, after

complaints ~ere made., tn.at khe ~exual naraasment would~e atopped,

aa t~e±r policy requ±re.6~ when ±.n fac~, ±t only cont~nue~ ~n~ 2neen~-

s±.f±e~ until they were forced to rea±~n; (.cI perpetrat±~g w±.l~ful,

oppress±re, and ~lle~a± acts and statements of sexua~ ha~aaament

a~a±n~t Keefer an~ ~rank~ khrou~hout tne±r tenure of empkoyment ~±th

8



Hoover Dodge; and (d), fabricating a disciplinary report on Keefer

the day she resigned due to Defendant’s sexual harassment. The

aforestated misrepresentation in (b) was false, material~ the

Defendantknew it was false, Defendant intended it be relied

upon, Keefer and Franks were ignorant of its falsity~ tn.~y relied

" ~ and tn.eyon the m±sreprese.ntation, they had a right to rely on

suffered damages.

33. The. acts committed By Hoover Dodge as hereinaDove enumer~~

ated were done fn violation of Keefer"s and Frankst’ rig~ to work

in an envlron~ent free of sexual harassment; and said ac~s were

committed fraudulently~ intentiona±ly, and wi±lfully forithe purp

ose of damaging Keefer an6 Franks~ and mak±ng it imposs±~±e for

them to continue work.

34. By reason of the fraudulent acts accompanying Drfiach. of

contract Dy Defendant, Keefer and F¯ranks are entitled to recover

punitive damages as well as¯ the actual damages as hereinaDove al~-

leged.                                                               I

WHEREFORE, Intervenor/Plaintiffs pray for judgment against the

Defendants where appropriate, as follows: actual and punitive dam~

ages, costs, pre~.judgment and post-judgment interest, reasonaDle

attorney fees, and for such furtn~er relief as the Court deems just

and proper.



uduglas H.
z3 Broad Street
Charleston, SC 29401
(843) 853-9600
#993

ATTORNEY FOR INTERVENOR/PLAINTIFI’S

10



-6-

NO HARASSMENT POLICY           I

Hoover Automotive does not and will not tolerate harassmen~ of our

employees, applicants, or customers. The term "harassment" includes, but is not limited to,

slurs, jokes, and other verbal, graphic, or physical conduct relating to an individual’s race,

color, sex, religion, national origin, citizenship, age, or disability_ "Harassment" also includes

sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, offensive touching, and other verbal, ~ raphic, or

physical conduct of a sexual nature.

VIOLATION OF THIS POLICY WILL SUBJECT AN EMPL{ ;YEE TO

DISCIPLINARY ACTION, UP TO AND INCLUDING IMMEDIATE DISCHARGE.

Ifyoufeel that you are being harassed in any way by a co-worker, a ~ustomer,

or a vendor, you should notify your supervisor or manager immediately. The mat!er will be

thoroughly investigated and, where appropriate, disciplinary action will be taken.

Our supervisors and managers are also covered by this pohcy and are

prohibited fi’om engaging in any form of harassing conduct. Further, no supervisor or other

member of management has the authority to suggest to any employee or applicant that the
--individual s employment, continued employment, or future advancement will be affected in

any way by the individual’s entering into (or refusing to enter into) any form of personal

relationship with the supervisor or member of management. Such conduct is a direct violation

of this policy.

if you believe-that a supervisor or member of management has acted

inconsistently with this policy, if you are not comfortable bringing a complaint. :egarding

harassment to your immediate supervisor, or if you believe that your complaint concerning

a co-worker,, a customer, or a vendor has not been handled to your satisfactic n, please

immediately contact the dealer.

YOU WILL NOT BE PENALIZED IN ANY WAY FOR REPORTING

SUCH IMPROPER CONDUCT.

Please. do not assume that the Company is aware of your problem. Please

bring your complaints and concerns to our attention so that we can resolve them.



HOOVER CHRYSLER DODGE, INC.

"HARASSMENT"

The company wil] not tolerate harassment of its emloyees. An~ .
form of harassment related to an employee’s race, color, sex, relilg£on,
nationa! origin, age, or disability is a violation of this po]icy land
will be treated aS a disciplinary matter. For these purposes, the term
"harassment" includes, but not necessarily limited to: slurs, jokes,
or other verbal, graphic, or physica] conduct relating to an indi~idual’s
race, color, sex, religion, nationa] origin, age, or physical or nenta]
handicap. Harassment also includes sexual advances, requests for sexual
favors, and other verbal, graphic, or physical conduct of a sexual nature.
Violation of this policy by an employee shall subject that employee to
disciplinary action, up to and including discharge.

¯ If you feel you are being harasse~ by any other employee, youi should
at once make your feelings .know~"~:~c~O~dh~-~~!~\~e:.~.~r-V.~or Or
other member of managemeht"to .~ho~.~the-e.~1~yee’ feels comfortable’
reporting the incident. The supervisor will see that the matter is
investigated and, where appropriate, disciplinary action taken. If
you do not feel that the matter can be discussed with your supervi.sor,
you may arrange for a conference with the company president. Any’
employee reporting harassment or assisting in an investigation of such
charge will not be subject to any retaliating response from managenent.

Harassment of employees in connection with their work by non-
employees (auditors, customers,, salespersons) may also be a v~olat~on
of this policy. Any employee who becomes aware of any harassment Of
an employee by a nonemployee.should report such harassment to his/her
supervisor.



IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

DISTRICT OF SOUTH CAROLINA

CHARLESTON DIVISION

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY
COMMISSION,

Plaintiff,

VS.

HOOVER DODGE, INC.,
HOOVER CHRYSLER, INC.,
HOOVER JEEP CHRYSLER, INC.,
and HOOVER CHRYSLER JEEP, INC.,

Defendants.

JESSICA KEEFER and
LAURA FRANKS,

Intervenors.

CIVIL ACTION 2;03~.3055~-18BG

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I certify that on the 13th day of January 2004, I mailed by

ffrs-t class mail a copy of the Intervenor/Plaintiffs~" Mo~ion to

Intervene, and proposed Complaint in Intervention, to counsel of

record for the Defendants, H. Clayton Walker, Jr.~. P.O. Box 1459,

Columb±a, SC, 2~202~ and counsel for P±a±nt±ff, Edw±n L. ~urna~e,

EEOC, 301 N. Na±n St., Landmark. Bld~ Ste.. ~4fi2, Greenville, SC 296fi~.


